
UNITED STATES of AMERICA
U.S. DISTRICT COURT -- EASTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN

KAI HARRIS,
on behalf of herself
and all others similarly situated,

Plaintiff, DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

-vs- Case No. 11-12130
Hon. George Caram Steeh

DETROIT II AUTOMOBILES, INC.,

Defendant.

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT
WITH JURY DEMAND FOR CLASS RELIEF

1. This action is brought by consumers in response to Detroit II Automobiles, Inc.’s unlawful

practices in connection with the credit lease and sale of used cars. Specifically, Detroit II

Automobiles, Inc. sells used cars and loans to purchase those cars to consumers who are

unsophisticated, desperate or led to believe that they are unable to obtain conventional auto

financing. Wilfully, and with intent to defraud, Detroit II Automobiles, Inc. misrepresents

the credit sales which are the subject of this lawsuit as “leases” in an illegal attempt to

circumvent the disclosure requirements of the Truth in Lending Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1638

(“TILA”) for credit sales.
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2. Although the financing document involved in these matters is called a “lease,” it is actually

a credit sale disguised as a lease or a “spurious lease” as defined in 15 U.S.C. § 1602(h) and

Regulation Z, 226.2(a)(16).

3. The practice and policy of foisting a spurious lease upon an unsuspecting consumer serves

to allow a nimiety of deceptive ends, chief among these the complete and total circumvention

of the standard TILA disclosures which allow consumers to make informed decisions

regarding a major credit purchase.

JURISDICTION

4. This court has federal question jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1337.

5. As to any supplemental claims set forth herein, there are no exceptional circumstances or

other compelling reasons for this Court to decline jurisdiction and the interests of justice

would best be served if this Court heard these claims along with the federal claims.

PARTIES

6. The Plaintiff to this lawsuit is Kai Harris who resides in Clarkston, Michigan in Oakland

County.

7. The Defendant to this lawsuit is Detroit II Automobiles, Inc. (“Detroit II Auto”) which is a

corporation doing business in Michigan and which by statute and condition of licensing, may

be served through its irrevocable resident agent, the Bureau of Regulatory Services, Business

Licensing and Regulation Division, Richard H. Austin Building – 3rd Floor, 430 W. Allegan

Street, Lansing, MI 48918.
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8. At all relevant times Detroit II Auto -- in the ordinary course of its business -- regularly

extended or offered consumer credit for which a finance charge is, or may be imposed or

which, by written agreement is payable in more than four installments and is the person to

whom the transaction which is the subject of this action is initially payable.

9. Detroit II Auto is a creditor under the TILA, 15 U.S.C. § 1602(g) and regulation Z §

226.2(a)(17).

VENUE

10. The transactions and occurrences which give rise to this action occurred in Wayne County

in Michigan.

11. Venue is proper in the Eastern District of Michigan.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

12. On or about March 21, 2011, Ms. Harris went to the business place of Detroit II Auto for

the purpose of purchasing a vehicle.

13. At that time, Ms. Harris executed the attached “Closed End Vehicle Lease Agreement”

which was in fact, a spurious lease; the transaction was not a true lease, but based upon the

terms in the lease, it was a purchase on credit.

14. Specifically, the lease contains an agreed upon value of the vehicle of $11,375.00 – with

sales tax, that amount would be $12,057.50; Ms. Harris also purchased a $1,500.00 service

contract but she put $2,083.00 down; with no credit or financing whatsoever, Ms. Harris

could have driven away with the vehicle and owed nothing if she wrote a check for

$11,474.50.
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15. However, Ms. Harris did not write a check for $11,474.50; instead she agreed, under the

terms of the “Closed End Vehicle Lease Agreement” to pay $124.32 per week for 156 weeks.

16. The effective Annual Percentage Rate for this transaction is 38.52864% – at law, the most

Detroit II Auto could have charged, by law, as an Annual Percentage Rate is 25.00%.

17. Under these circumstances, Ms. Harris would pay more than the total of the amount financed

and all the finance charges that Detroit II Auto could possibly charge; this is the classic

example of a usurious credit sale disguised as a lease; as such, TILA disclosures for a credit

sale were required to be given to Ms. Harris.

18. At the time and in the manner required under TILA and Regulation Z, Detroit II Auto did not

disclose to Ms. Harris, that the subject transaction was actually a credit sale and that the

annual percentage rate or APR of the loan associated with the purchase was 38.52864%.

19. At the time and in the manner required under TILA and Regulation Z, Detroit II Auto did not

disclose to Ms. Harris, that the subject transaction was actually a credit sale and that finance

charge was approximately $9,155.44.

20. At the time and in the manner required under TILA and Regulation Z, Detroit II Auto did not

disclose to Ms. Harris, that the subject transaction was actually a credit sale and that the

amount financed was $11,474.50.

21. At the time and in the manner required under TILA and Regulation Z, Detroit II Auto did not

disclose to Ms. Harris, that the subject transaction was actually a credit sale and that the total

of payments was $21,476.92.

22. At the time and in the manner required under TILA and Regulation Z, Detroit II Auto did not

disclose to Ms. Harris, a legal itemization of the amount financed.
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23. Detroit II Auto charged Ms. Harris a finance charge greatly in excess of what was legal.

24. Ms. Harris entered into a transaction with Detroit II Auto in which Detroit II Auto identified

the transaction as a lease, but the terms of the agreement required her to pay as compensation

a sum substantially equivalent to, or in excess of, the total value of the property and service

involved.

25. Ms. Harris was not able to make an informed decision as to the cost of credit.

26. Ms. Harris suffered actual damages as a result of Detroit II Auto’s violations of the TILA.

CLASS ALLEGATIONS

27. Plaintiff incorporates the previous allegations by reference.

28. It was Detroit II Auto’s policy to enter into the spurious lease agreements as set forth in this

complaint.

29. This action is brought on behalf of a class, pursuant to Fed.R.Civ.P. 23(a) and (b)(3).

30. The class is defined as follows: All consumers who – during the preceding six years –

entered into transactions with Detroit II Auto in which Detroit II Auto identified the

transaction as “a lease” or a “closed end vehicle lease agreement,” the terms of which require

the consumer to pay as compensation a sum substantially equivalent to, or in excess of, the

total value of the property and service involved.

31. On information and belief, the class is so numerous that joinder of all individuals is not

practicable.
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32. There are questions of law and fact common to the class, which questions predominate over

any questions affecting only individual class members. The principal common question for

purposes of this claim is whether Detroit II Auto has a policy and practice of entering into

spurious lease agreements with consumers.

33. The only individual question would appear to be the identification of the class members.

34. Plaintiff’s claims are typical of those of the class members. All are based on the same factual

and legal theories.

35. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately represent the class members. Plaintiff has retained

counsel experienced in bringing class actions and consumer credit claims.

36. A class action is superior for the fair and efficient adjudication of the class members' claims.

Congress specifically contemplated TILA class actions as a means of enforcing the statute.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff requests that the Court enter judgment in favor of Plaintiff and the

class members and against defendant Detroit II Auto for:

a. Statutory damages as provided by 15 U.S.C. §1640;

b. Appropriate injunctive relief.

c. Attorney's fees, litigation expenses and costs of suit.

d. Such other or further relief as is appropriate and just.

COUNT I -- Truth in Lending Act (Detroit II Auto)

37. Ms. Harris incorporates the preceding allegations by reference.

38. By failing to provide Ms. Harris with a copy of truth in lending disclosures at the time and

in the manner prescribed by Regulation Z of the Truth in Lending Act, the dealer has violated

the federal Truth in Lending Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1601.
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39. Detroit II Auto retained portions of the amount charged for the service contract which Ms.

Harris purchased.

40. Detroit II Auto failed to disclose that it was retaining a portion of the amount charged for the

service contract.

41. The failure of Detroit II Auto to disclose that it was retaining a portion of the amount charged

for the service contract constitutes a violation of TILA, 15 U.S.C. § 1638 and 16 C.F.R. §

226.18(b) and [c].

42. Detroit II Auto failed to accurately disclose the applicable finance charge as required by 15

U.S.C. § 1638 and Reg Z § 226.18(d)

43. Detroit II Auto failed to accurately disclose and itemize the amount financed in violation of

15 U.S.C. § 1638, Reg Z § 226.18(b), and Reg Z § 226.18[c].

44. As a consequence of failing to accurately state the actual finance charge, Detroit II Auto also

misstated the applicable "APR" in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1338 and Reg Z § 226.18(e).

45. Detroit II Auto failed to accurately disclose the applicable "APR" as required by 15 U.S.C.

§ 1638; Reg Z § 226.18(32); Reg Z § 226.22.

46. Detroit II Auto was required to make the disclosures required by 16 U.S.C. § 1638 prior to

failed to prior to consummating the sale of the vehicle.

47. Those disclosures were required to be made in writing, in form that could be kept by the

consumer so that consumers may shop for credit prior to engaging in a credit transaction.

48. Detroit II Auto failed to make those disclosures in a timely fashion in violation of 15 U.S.C.

§ 1638(a)(4).

7

2:11-cv-12130-GCS-PJK   Doc # 2    Filed 05/15/11   Pg 7 of 10    Pg ID 22



49. Detroit II Auto is liable to Plaintiff for actual and statutory damages to be determined at trial,

costs, and statutory attorney fees in accordance with 15 U.S.C. § 1640.

COUNT II — Motor Vehicle Sales Finance Act

50. Ms. Harris incorporates the preceding allegations by reference.

51. All charges imposed upon Ms. Harris and the class members under the spurious lease, which

were not authorized by the Michigan Motor Vehicle Sales Finance Act ("MVSFA"), M.C.L.

§492.101 et seq. and not properly itemized, as required in that act, constitute a finance

charge.

52. Detroit II Auto failed to properly complete all necessary terms of the installment contract

as required by the MVSFA.

53. Because the spurious lease was not a retail installment contract as defined in the MVSFA,

those charges imposed as a finance charge were not authorized under that statute.

54. Detroit II Auto imposed upon Ms. Harris and the class members charges which are not

authorized by the MVSFA in violation of M.C.L. § 492.131.

55. Those charges constitute actual damages suffered by Ms. Harris and the class members.

56. Ms. Harris and the class members have suffered the damages set forth above by reason of the

Detroit II Auto’s violations of the MVSFA.

COUNT III — Motor Vehicle Installment Sales Contract Act

57. Ms. Harris incorporates the preceding allegations by reference.

58. Detroit II Auto failed to properly complete all necessary terms of Ms. Harris’s and the class

members’ installment contracts as required by the Michigan Motor Installment Sales

Contract Act, M.C.L. § 566.301 et seq., (“MVISCA”).
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59. Ms. Harris’s and the class members’ spurious lease – prepared by Detroit II Auto – did not

substantially comply with the MVISCA. M.C.L. § 566.302.

60. Ms. Harris and the class members have suffered damages in the amount of the finance charge

imposed under the MVISCA.

COUNT IV — Michigan Credit Reform Act

61. Ms. Harris incorporates the preceding allegations by reference.

62. The finance charges imposed on Ms. Harris and the class members were not authorized under

the MVSFA and were therefore “excessive” as that term is defined in the Michigan Credit

Reform Act, M.C.L. § 445.1851 et seq., (“MCRA.”)

63. Detroit II Auto has imposed excessive charges upon Ms. Harris and the class members in

violation of M.C.L. § 445.1856.

64. Ms. Harris and the class members suffered damages as a result of this violation of the MCRA

and are entitled to damages of $1,000 each plus disgorgement of the improper finance

charges.

65. Ms. Harris and the class members have suffered damages as a result of this violation of the

MCRA.

COUNT V – Michigan Consumer Protection Act (Class Claim)

66. Plaintiffs incorporate the preceding allegations by reference.

67. The allegations set forth above also give rise to violations of the Michigan Consumer

Protection Act, M.C.L. §445.901 et seq.

68. Ms. Harris and the class members have suffered damages as a result of these violations of

the Michigan Consumer Protection Act.
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JURY DEMAND

69. Kai Harris demands a jury trial in this case.

REQUEST FOR RELIEF

Plaintiff requests that this Honorable Court grant the following relief:

a. Assume jurisdiction over this case including all supplemental claims.

b. Certify this lawsuit as a Class Action;

c. Award actual damages.

d. Award statutory damages under both state and federal law.

e. Award appropriate injunctive relief.

f. Award attorney's fees, litigation expenses and costs of suit.

g. Grant such other or further relief as is appropriate.

Respectfully Submitted,

ADAM G. TAUB & ASSOCIATES
CONSUMER LAW GROUP, PLC

By: s/ Adam G. Taub
Adam G. Taub (P48703)
Attorney for Kai Harris and a

class of similarly situated consumers
18930 West 10 Mile Rd. Suite 2500
Southfield, MI 48075
Phone: (248) 746-3790
Email: adamgtaub@clgplc.net

Dated: May 15, 2011
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